
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC 
AND 
SOCIAL COUNCIL 

UNITF.l:l NATIONS OPIUM CONFERENCE 

Distr. 
GENERAL 

E/CONF.l~/SR.l 
21 May 195, 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FIRST MEETING 

Held at Headquarters, New York, 
on Monday , 11 May 1953, at 3.10 p·.m. 

CONTENTS 

ppening of the Conference by the Secretary-Gnneral of the 

United Nations 

Election of the P:r.e~?:.ldent 

Adoption of the rules of procedure (E/CONF.14/13) 

Appoint~ent of the Credentials Committe'-! 

Election of Vice-President s 

PRESENT: 
-·~----

Acting President: Mr. HAMMAR::>KJOLD 

President: . Mr. LINDT ···-----·--. . Exe_£~~~Se~:r:-~~·~-~1.: Mr • YATES 

Administrati~e . s~~~~r: Mr. PAt>TUHOV 

53-14274 

Sr:cretary-Genera1 of the 
United Nations 

Switzerl and 



E/CONF. l 4/SR.l 
English 
Page 2 

OPENINJ . OF 'l'HE CONFERENCE BY THE SECRETARY -GENERAL CF THE UNITED NATIONS 

The ACTING PRB~IDENT declared the United Nations Opium Conference open. 

=<:.;;eaking as Secretary-General of the United Nat ions , he explained the aim 

of i;be Confer ence which had been convened by the Economic and Social Council 

in pursuance of the provisions of Articles 1 and 62 of the Charter, to solve a 

problem whi ch had economic, social and humanitarian aspects. 

The Confer ence was a part of the work of inter national co-operation, which 

vas patiently bei ng accomplished by the United Nations i n technical fields for 

the benefit of the whole of mankind and which was too often overlooked or 

under -estimated . The League of Nations, and afterwards the United Nations 

with the help of the vlorl d Health Organization, the Permanent Central Opium 

Board and the Drug Super vi sory Body, had set up a control system for narcotic 

drugs based on a seri es of international treaties which prevented the use of 

such drugs for illicit purposes but permitted all medical and scientific needs 

to be met. 

Although t hat system had, as a whole , worked satisf act orily, the General 

Assembly, the Economic and Social Council, and the Commission on Narcotic Drugs 

had thought that i t would be a gr eat advantage to codify, s implify and, if 

poss ible improve the international instruments on which it was based. The 

Commission on Narcotic Drugs had undertaken that t ask and had devoted a lar ge 

part of its recent sessions to the study of a draft single convent i on drawn up 

by the Secretariat in accordance with . the Commission's i nstructions . As the 

work of drawing up a s i ngle convention t ook a gr eat deal of time and would not 

be completed before several years had elapsed, the Economic and Social Council 

and the Commiss ion on Narcotic Drugs had decided that before the provisions 

of the futur e single convention r ef erring to the l imitation of raw materials 

for the manufacture of narcotic drugs could enter into force, a provisional 

international agreement should be r eached for the limitation of the production 

of opium, on which most of the natural narcotic drugG wer e based . 



E/CONF. l 4/SR.l 
English 
Page 3 

Although the importance of synthetic drugs was growing f rom day to dny, 

opium was still the most wi dely used drug i n the world . With itu derivat i ves 

morphine 1 codeine · and heroin - it was an incomparable boon and also a d~~adly 

scour gP. , the most '~idely used analgesic and narcotic . The efforts made by 

St ates parties to the conventions on narcotic drugs during the past forty 

years had brought about a gr eat r eduction in the amount of opium used f'or 

purposes which ;.;er e not medical or scientific, but the al:',.nual '<torld production 

of opium was still several t i mes greater than the amount needed f or l icit 

international trade purposes , estimated at approximately 500,000 i<ilogrammes . 

The need f or limiting the production Of opium had been recognized for 

many years past . On 2d June 1921, the League of Nations Counc 11 had adopted 

a r eport s La. t ing t.ha t in order to solve the opi um problem the evil s hould be 

attacl{ed at its roots , that is to say, the production of opium must be r educed 

and its use limited t o medical and sc.ientific purposes . Ho"!ever, it had not 

proved possible to carry out such a programme, and t he League of Nations had 

preferred to t ake up t he question from another angle by attacking the various 

problems one by one in a series of i nternational instruments. on narcotic drugs . 

Only on th~ eve of \o!orl d War II had the League of Nations Advisory Cowmittee 

on Traffic in Opium and Other Dangerous Drug~; und·artaken the pre:raration of a 

convention on the limitation of raw materials , 

When the United Nations had decided to take up the study of the question , 

the Economic and SociaJ. Council and the Commission on Narcotic Drugs had 

thought that the best way t o sol ve t he problem ,,rould be to follo'o~ the plan 

s<?t out in t he dr-aft prot ocol which was before the Conference . That draf t 

was bas•Jd on t he 1925 and 1931 Conventions and incl uded an estimate system 

and statistical summaries. It indirectly limtted the :production of opium 

by establishing a limit for opium stocks which each of the parties to the 

protocol •..rould be aut horized to maintain. I t provided for t he strengtheni ng 

of national opium monopolies and the establishment of i nternational contr ol , 

incl uding embargos and investigations or the hol ding of administrative 

consultation::; on t he spot . I t was for the Conference to r evise that t ex t 

and to make any changes or i mprovement::; deemed necessary . 



~/CONF . l4/SR.l 
e nglish 
Page 4 

Member St a tes of t he United Nations repr esented at the Conference had a 

speclal i nterest in t he opium problem as producers, manufactur ers or r:onsULaers . 

He wel comed t he r epresenta.taives of non-member St ates vrh1ch '"ere part i es t o the 

conventions on narcotic drugs , and noted Hi th Sf'.tisfact ion t hat many States 

-.rhi ch were not represented at the Conf erence because t hey 1-rere only sHghtly 

affected by t he question, had stated that they vrould consider signj.ng the prot ocol. 

Lastly he expressed hi:s most ·sincer e wishes· for the success of the 

Conference 1 s ,.,ork. 

2 . ELECTION OF THE PRESIDENT 

candidates . 

_,.._'\...__ _ -.D 
•u_...,....,....,...,. w v.a. I.U llUUI.lUCI. l.t:: 

Mr. VAILLE (Fr ance) nominated Mr. Lindt, r epresentative of SwH zerland, 

who had ably pr es i ded over the Executi ve Board of the United Nations Interna tional 

Children ' s Emer gency Fund . Mr . Lindt represented a countr y whi ch had 

traditional ly played a leading part i n the field of human solidar i ty and i n t he 

social fie l d . 

Mr . WALKER (United Kingdom) and Mr . NIKOLIC (Yugoslavia) supported the 

proposal. 

Mr. Li ndt ( S ~.;i tzerland) uas elected Pres i dent by acclamat ion . 

The PRESIDENT t hanked the Cnnfer ence , on behal f 0f his country and 

on his own behalf , f or the honour i t had paid hi m by electing him t o pres i de 

over its work. 

ADOPTION OF THE RULES OF PROCEDURE (E/CONF . 14/13) 

The PRESIDBNT suggested t hat the Confer ence shoul d provisionally adopt 

the rul es of procedure drawn up by the Secretary-General . Represent atives Hould 



E/CONF.l4/SR.l 
English 
Page 5 

have every opportunity later t o oubmit in writing any amendments they considered 

appropriate. 

The draf~_!~Jles of P~.2..cedu~ _ _(E/9~l~n_~_ -e:_ovislon£J.lly adopted . 

APPOINTMENT ·OF THE CRZDENTI AV3 Cotvlt>1ITI'8E 

The PRi!:SIDENT r end out rule 3 of the rules of --procedure and suggested 

that the representatives of the follo,•ing countries shouJ d be appointed members 

of the Credentials C<:;mmittee: Japan, r-~Iexico, Pakistan, lvdher.l.o.nds and Turkey. 

It was so decided. 

ElECTI ON OF VIGE-PRESIDl~NT3 

The .PREJ IDBNT pointed out t hat , in accordance i·t:i t l'1 r ule 5 of the rules 

of procedure, the Conference must elect a:i.x Vice-Presidentf:l. 

Mr. \·iOULBR~UN (Belgium), supported by Mr. VAILl.I:: (F'r <.n.ce) , nom:!.nated 

the United States and Ullited K1ncdom r epr <:!sentatives. 

lV\r. mr~OLIC (Yueos.l.avja) 1 supported by Mr. Sd tp,::i{ Ci''-:!-~'.ey) nom:i.nated 

the represer.tutJ.ves of ImL ·J. and Iran as two of t he Vlce-Pr·e::::idents. 

Nr. RE~Ifl. ( Cl· i ?;:·.) nominnted the r epr esentat ive of Fr ,:.nce . 

Mr. VAILL~: (:france) thanl{ed the Chinese represf'nt n.t i ve b ut tJ.S){ed him 

to "'1 thdra"' hie proposal, es :i t ,.1as essential for the t :r·ree groups of countries • 

producers, manuf ucturer£J < . .nd consumers - to be adequatelJ repr,:-~sented among the 

officers of the Conference. 

I•lr . KRI~HN/·.NOOR'fHY (Indj a ) n::.ujnnted the represer,t a tive of Canada. 

Mr. viADSI<lORTH (United Sta ten of ~-'\rnerica.) alflo r ecr etted that he was 

unable to accept the honour "'b1.ch certain r epresentatJ.ve:> hnd ··!:l.sbed to pay his 



E/CONF.4/SR. l 
English 
Page 6 

country. He nominated the r epr esentative of t he Federal Republic of Germany . 

Mr. ~AILLE (France) supported the proposal. 

Mr. KY.::lOU (Greec~ ) emphasized that i n order t o m~into.in an equi.table 

geographical r epr esentation one of t be Vice- Presidents should be a r epresentative 

of a Latin American co~try, and ·be therefore nominat ed the r epresentative of 

Chile. 

The PRESI DENT r ecalled that accordi ng to r ul e 55 of the rules of 

procedure all elections would be by secret ballot unl ess t he Confer ence dec i ded 

o'therwi se. 

Mr. KYROU {Gr eece) , suppor ted by Mr . VAI LLE (rrrnce) , suggested t hat 

the six candidates nominated should be elected by acclam~tl.on . 

The r epr esentatives of Canade , Chile , I ndia, Iran, t~~ .!..':.~~ral Republic of 

Germany end the United Kingdom wer e elected Vi ce- Presi dent! by .=cl'::mn~ion. 

The P~SIDENT announced t hat t he officer s of t he Conf er ence would meet 

at the close of the meeting . 

The meeting r ose at 3.40 p .m. 

22/5 a.m. 




